ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS
February 20, 2008
3:46 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve M ke Hawker, Chair
Represent ati ve Anna Faircl ough, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Bob Roses

Representative Paul Seaton

Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son

Representati ve Sharon Ci ssnha

Representati ve Max G uenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 35
Proposing an anendnent to the Constitution of the State of
Al aska relating to state debt.
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HIR 35

SHORT TI TLE. CONST AM STATE DEBT
SPONSOR(s): WAYS & MEANS

02/ 19/ 08 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 19/ 08 (H) WeM JUD, FIN
02/ 20/ 08 (H) WM AT 3:30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

W TNESS REG STER

LI SA MARI OTTI, Staff

to Representative G uenberg
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion of HIR 35, answered
gquestions on behalf of the House Special Committee on WAays and
Means, sponsor of the bill, of which Representative G uenberg is
a nmenber.

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE -1- February 20, 2008



DEVEN M TCHELL, Debt Manager

Treasury Division

Depart ment of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion of HIR 35, offered
comment s and suggestions, and responded to questi ons.

JERRY BURNETT, Director, Legislative Liaison

Adm ni strative Services Division

Depart nent of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion of HIR 35, offered
comment s and suggestions, and responded to questions.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR M KE HAWKER cal | ed the House Special Conmttee on Ways and
Means neeting to order at 3:46:48 PM Represent ati ves Hawker,
Seaton, GCissna, Roses, Fairclough, Guenberg, and WIson were
present at the call to order.

HIJIR 35- CONST AM STATE DEBT

3:47:12 PM

CHAI R HAWKER announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTION NO. 35, Proposing an anendnent to the
Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to state debt.

3:49: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG, speaking on behalf of the House
Special Comrittee on Ways and Means, sponsor of the bill,
expl ained that the resolution would anmend Article I X, sec. 8 of
the Alaska State Constitution by deleting "for capital
i nprovenents or unless authorized by law for housing |oans for
veterans," as this places a limtation on state debt. He
acknow edged that state debt would still have to be ratified by
a majority of the voters. He referred to a handout included in
the nmenbers' packets, "Gordon Harrison, Al aska's Constitution: A
Citizen's @uide," pages 151-152, which discusses the common
state constitutional limtations on the ability of states to
incur debt. He noted that sone states restrict debt to specific
pur poses, sone declare a ceiling for allowable debt paynents,
and sonme require a vote of the legislature or the electorate.

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 2- February 20, 2008



He stated that originally A aska, as a territory, was not
allowed to incur debt, but that provision was renoved and the
current provision was inserted. He pointed out that the
rel evant court cases are docunented in the Harrison article on
page 152.

3:53:37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to the other handout included
in the nenbers’ packets from Patricia Young, Legislative
Research Services, dated June 25, 2007

CHAI R HAWKER nentioned that the assenblage of all the referenced
attachnments to the handout is 177 pages and, although much of it
is copyright protected, the sponsor will nmke it available upon
request .

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to the single page handout in
the nenbers' packets |abeled "Journal of Law, Economcs &
Organi zation, Vol. 12 1996" which indicates by state the types
of limtations on l|ong-term debt. He noted that only a few
states have no Ilimtations, but that the mjority require
approval by the voters. He pointed out that M. Young' s paper
refers to the four basic groups of constitutional provisions:

ref erendum approval, supermgjority vote of the |egislature,
revenue based ceiling, and prohibiting guaranteed debt. He
noted that the voters wll want the right to approve |arge

debts, so this was retained in the amendnent. He expressed that
the purpose of the resolution is to provide additiona
flexibility for the state to incur debt.

3:57:54 PM

CHAIR HAWKER asked for an explanation of why this is good for
Alaska and what is neant by greater flexibility in the
utilization of debt. He also requested to know what changes in
public policy m ght be expected as a result of the amendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG responded that there mght be a need
for «creative financing. He offered his belief that the
government should be free to govern as efficiently as possible
W t hout unnecessary strictures, and that the governnment should
be able to incur debt with the voters' approval.

3:59: 51 PM

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 3- February 20, 2008



CHAI R HAWKER asked for confirmation that deleting the |anguage
allowing debt for housing loans for veterans would not be
elimnating this capability, but would instead be creating a
broader authority.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG agr eed.
4:00: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA expressed her concern that the state does
not have a long termfiscal plan. She asked what advantages the
resolution offers to the state.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that this anendnent to the
Al aska State Constitution may becone part of the fiscal plan
presented in HB 125. He responded that this would renove a
constitutional inpedinent and allow the state to obtain GARVEE
bonds and pension obligation bonds with the voters' approval.
He allowed that there may be a need for additional |egislation
tolimt the indebtedness.

4:03:51 PM

CHAI R HAWVKER asked for confirmation that the resolution would
not change the proposal procedure and would still require a
voter referendum

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG agr eed.
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked why the state should l[ook for an

alternative to the permanent fund for debt relief, as either
will require a voter referendum

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that M. Mtchell wll give
specific reasons during his testinony. He explained that GARVEE
bonds borrow against future highway trust fund paynents. It is

a method of incurring debt to build capital projects now,
possi bly cheaper than later, and spreading the cost to the

future generations also using the projects. He expl ai ned that
pensi on bonds will provi de creative fi nanci ng wi t hout
wi t hdrawi ng noney from the permanent fund. These will be dealt
with in a fiscal manner that is different than the rest of the
budget. He offered his belief that it is sonetinmes advantageous
to incur debt with a tax exenpt, low interest rate, while

allowng the state to retain its noney for investnents wth
hi gher ear ni ngs.

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 4- February 20, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his belief that the state has
previ ously used GARVEE bonds for capital inprovenents. He asked
if the premse is to work on arbitrage and tine the investnents.
He posed that this does not work well for nobst people, and asked
why it would work better for the state.

4:08:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that he was not aware that the
state has already used GARVEE bonds, and that he will defer the
arbitrage questions to M. Mtchell.

LI SA MARIOTTI, Staff to Representative Guenberg, Alaska State
Legi slature, offered her understanding that the state currently
contracts debt by setting up a public corporation that nanages
and issues the debt. She explained that the anmendnent provides
a transparency that will allow voters to know what the debt is
incurred for.

4:11: 38 PM

DEVEN M TCHELL, Debt WManager, Treasury Division, Departnent of
Revenue (DOR), stated that the anmendnment would apply to nore
t han general obligation bonds, and would include certain revenue
bonds, the Alaska International Airport system sport fish

revenue bonds, and | ease revenue or certificates of
participation that the state cannot currently issue wthout a
capital project. He explained that the state can set up a

public corporation in statute which is not restricted to the
same limtations as the state itself. He pointed out that there

is pending legislation that will allow public corporations to be
set up with the authority to borrow, even though there are no
projects, for pension obligation bonds. He noted that when

nmoney is borrowed for other than a capital project, the taxable
loan rate is very simlar to an investnent rate of return, so
there is no gain from borrowi ng as opposed to using state funds.
He established that within the Alaska State Constitution there
is a prohibition to the dedication of revenues, which is a much
bi gger problem for debt managenent. There are revenues which
have the potential for being segregated and | evered. He
expl ai ned that GARVEE bonds allow a pledge of future federal
revenue, but that obligation does not count against the net tax
supported debt. However, in Al aska, we cannot do that, because
the Alaska State Constitution prohibits dedicating those federal
revenues.

4:16: 00 PM

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 5- February 20, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE WLSON asked if this resolution would allow
Al aska to borrow to pay off the PERS/ TERS unfunded liability.

MR MTCHELL said that the state already can, but this would
allow the state to proceed in a nore direct fashion. [ He
referred to HB 13, which will allow the state to issue bonds to
fund an unfunded liability; however, he offered his belief that
the Al aska State Constitution prohibition against the dedication
of revenues will not allow the state to issue these bonds. He
noted that HB 13 will also create the Pension Obligation Bond
Corporation which could borrow noney under the current
constitutional limtations.]

4:17:28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if this resolution would nake
certificates of participation or revenue bonds subject to a
vot er referendum

MR. M TCHELL responded that the anendnent would not change how
debt is issued by various entities, but it would change the
options that mght be available, as currently state debt is not
an option if there is not a capital project. He expl ai ned that
revenue bonds, increases to the allowable bond Ilimt, and
certificates of participation are all legislative actions that
would remain the sanme if this bill were to pass.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON posed that if this resolution does not
have any effect on revenue bonds or certificates of
participation, why are they being di scussed.

MR. M TCHELL said that this anmendnent would allow the state to
i ssue revenue bonds or certificates of participation wthout a
capital project, whereas right now, there has to be a capital
project. He noted that there is no change in the process or the
structure, just a change to where the noney will go.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify if there is still the
need to set up the public corporations for issuing debt.

4:20:59 PM
MR MTCHELL said that currently the state cannot borrow the
nmoney when there is no capital project, so the state sets up a

public corporation to borrow the noney. He explained that this
resolution would not inpact the existing corporations. He

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 6- February 20, 2008



pointed out that this resolution will give the state, through
certificates of participation and revenue bonds, the flexibility
to issue debt when there is no capital project, but that the
process will remain the sane.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON reflected that the resolution renoves two
al l omances for state debt. She asked whether a public
corporation would still be able to offer a general obligation
bond that was not for a capital project.

MR. M TCHELL said this would not change the public corporation's
statutory ability to do things.

JERRY BURNETT, Legislative Liaison, Drector, Admnistrative
Services Division, Departnent of Revenue (DOR), said that
currently public corporations can issue general obligation debt

which is not specific to a capital project. He expl ai ned that
these public corporations are not incurring state debt, and the
resolution refers to state debt only. Certificates of

participation are not considered state debt.

CHAI R HAWKER asked for a definition of state debt, as opposed to
public corporation obligations. He requested nore definition
for general obligation debt and other generic fornms of debt,
including subject to appropriation debt and noral obligation
debt, as they relate to state debt.

MR. M TCHELL responded that these questions are in the bond
counsel realm He pointed out that it is state debt if the
letterhead on the offering docunent says State of Al aska and
this would include general obligation bonds, revenue bonds, and
certificates of participation. He all owed, however, that these
are not considered debt under the constitutional definition. He
expl ained that general obligation bonds are obligations that
have the full faith, credit, and taxing authority of an issuer
behind them so either the state or a public corporation can
i ssue them He described that the public corporation is
pl edging the corporation's assets and ability to pay, whereas
the state is pledging its ability to inpose taxes and funds, and

this usually allows the state a higher credit rating. He said
that the state general obligation bonds are given the state's
hi ghest credit rating. He recommended that the commttee read

the Al aska Public Debt report which gives a thorough explanation
of all the state debt, down through nunicipal debt.

CHAI R HAWKER advi sed that the commttee review the Al aska Public
Debt report as it gives a good explanation of the types of debt,

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE -7- February 20, 2008



and it also introduces a foundational vocabulary necessary to
under stand debt issues.

4:29:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA conpared the Al aska and Washington State
investnment strategies and systens, noting that Alaska still
needs nore tools to expand.

4:30:57 PM

MR. BURNETT responded that the resolution offers a potential
t ool .

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked what the consequence is if a public
corporation defaults on a bond, as this is not considered state
debt .

MR. M TCHELL replied that only a noral obligation bond carries
an inplied commtnent for the state to stand behind the bonds.
He stated that public corporation debt is supported by revenue
generating projects, and although a default mght generate
pressure on the state, the state does not have a requirenment to
repay. He offered his belief that this would not bring any
direct negative financial ramfication to the state.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES recounted that a public corporation can
i ssue bonds without a vote fromthe citizens, yet, if this is a
noral obligation bond, the state is accountable for that debt.
He anal yzed that the resolution elimnates the necessity to set
up a public corporation in order to offer a bond which is not
tied to a capital project, but that the bond offering will still
need a vote of approval. He asked if this will ensure the state
a lower interest rate, and thereby let the state arbitrage the
noney.

MR M TCHELL offered his belief that the real potential exists
wi th pension obligation bonds. He conpared "general obligation”
debt to "subject to appropriation” debt, either of which my

entail a few billion dollars worth of borrow ng. He all owed
that there is currently a lot of angst with credit rating, and a
different perception of credit worthiness wll result in a

better interest rate. He explained that these bonds would have
the State of Alaska as the primary borrower, as opposed to a
public corporation. The general obligation bond or the
certificate of participation could result in a |ower interest
rate. He cited an exanple of a lower interest rate of 25 basis

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 8- February 20, 2008



points, which would generate a savings of $25 mllion per $1
billion borrowed.

4: 35:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES rem nded the commttee that this resol ution
is a constitutional anendnent and there have been 21
constitutional anmendnents proposed this year. He asked if this

establi shes the need for another constitutional conventi on.
4:36:34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if this resolution would allow the
state to bond debt for operations. He cited an exanple of the
Knik Arm Bridge and Toll Authority (KABATA), a large mine, or a
timber operation that wll not generate enough cash, but wll
generate economc activity in a region. He explained that he
was searching for applications other than the pension obligation
bonds.

MR. BURNETT relayed that there is sone potential for simlar

projects, however the legislature wuld still need to propose a
bill. He considered that a bond for an alternative energy fund
or an econom c devel opment fund nay be possible, and this has
occurred in other states which have no limtation on debt. He
allowed that there could be applications that "push the
envel ope. "

MR MTCHELL stated that any proposal wll be judged on its
nmerits. He explained that there needs to be a conpelling reason
to borrow noney on a taxable basis. He reported that | ower
interest rates are given on tax-exenpt |oans, so that nore
specul ative projects are best paid with cash. He advised to pay
for schools, repairs, etc. with tax-exenpt | oans. He all owed
that this is the conpelling reason for public entities to borrow
when they have noney in the bank.

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON posed that he was searching for
applications that were not capital projects, and he suggested
operational partnerships for an econom c devel oprment project.
4:41: 31 PM

MR. BURNETT said that they have not had tine to study this
resol uti on enough to make any recomrendati ons.

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE - 9- February 20, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked for a suggestion, given the current
debt nmanagenent structure, for a bigger strategy.

MR. M TCHELL explained that there is no debt capacity limtation
in statute or in the constitution. He allowed that there is a
policy that the state tries to maintain the general fund
supported debt at 8 percent of unrestricted revenue. He
coomented that sone states have stronger debt rmanagenent
| anguage witten into statute, which can give them a better
credit rating and |lower interest rates, but that can also [imt
their capability for projects.

4:44:. 28 PM

CHAIR HAWKER explained that the purpose of this conmmttee
nmeeting is to introduce the idea, and devel op an awareness of
the technical, conplex nature of any proposed changes.

[ HIR 35 was hel d over.]

ADJ OURNNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Committee on Ways and Means neeting was adjourned at
4:45: 37 PM

HOUSE WM COWM TTEE -10- February 20, 2008



